AGENDA COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 1, 2015 6:00 P.M. COUNTY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, OLD JAIL BUILDING

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance
- 3. Roll Call
- 4. Approval of Minutesa) Regular Meeting July 28, 2015
- 5. Awards and Recognitions
 - a) Colleton County Finance Department Governmental Finance Officers Association Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting.
- 6. Appearances & Public Presentationsa) Nate Bristow, Tommie's Auto & Diesel- Re: Towing & Road Service
- 7. Administrator's Briefing
- 8. Public Hearing
 - a) Ordinance 15-O-10, To Provide For The Issuance And Sale Of Not Exceeding \$6,000,000 Taxable General Obligation Bonds Of Colleton County, South Carolina; To Prescribe The Purposes For Which The Proceeds Shall Be Expended, Including The Refunding Of Special Source Revenue Bonds Of The County And The Acquisition Of Certain Real Property For Economic Development Purposes; To Provide For The Payment Thereof; And Other Matters Relating Thereto.
- 9. Old Business
 - a) 3rd Reading, Ordinance 15-O-10, To Provide For The Issuance And Sale Of Not Exceeding \$6,000,000 Taxable General Obligation Bonds Of Colleton County, South Carolina; To Prescribe The Purposes For Which The Proceeds Shall Be Expended, Including The Refunding Of Special Source Revenue Bonds Of The County And The Acquisition Of Certain Real Property For Economic Development Purposes; To Provide For The Payment Thereof; And Other Matters Relating Thereto.
 - b) 2nd Reading, Ordinance 15-O-11, To Ratify FY15 Grant And Budget Resolutions And Related Appropriations For All Funds; To Ratify Transfer And Other Resolutions Previously Authorized By Council; And Other Matters Related Thereto.

- 10. New Business
 - a) 1st Reading, Ordinance 15-O-12, BY TITLE ONLY, Approving the Issuance by Project Global of Revenue Bonds for the Purposes of an Economic Development Project of Colleton County; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of the Deposit and Reimbursement Agreement Between Colleton County and Project Global; To Provide for the Issuance and Sale of General Obligation Bonds of Colleton County if Needed, South Carolina to Fund Obligations of Colleton County Under the Deposit and Reimbursement Agreement to Promote the Economic Development of Colleton County; And Other Matters Relating Thereto.
 - b) Resolution 15-R-84, To Approve a Mutual Aid Agreement between the Colleton County Sheriff's Office and the Lexington County Sheriff's Office.
 - c) Resolution 15-R-85, To Approve the Maintenance Agreement for the Lease of Equipment between Colleton County and Agricredit Acceptance, LLC.
 - d) Resolution 15-R-86, To Authorize an Appropriation from the General Fund (Fund 100) Fund Balance in the Amount of \$17,800 to Council on Aging Direct Assistance.
 - e) Resolution 15-R-87, To Authorize an Operating Transfer from the State Aid to the Library Fund (Fund 121) to the Colleton County Memorial Library Fund (Fund 122).
 - f) Resolution 15-R-88, To Authorize Acceptance and Budgeting of Funds for Various Grants Received for FY 2015-2016.
 - g) Resolution 15-R-89, To Appoint Members to Board Vacancies.
 - h) Resolution 15-R-90, To Establish Fees for the Dogwood Hills Golf Course.
- 11. Items for Information and Public Record
- 12. Public Comments (3 minutes per person/max time 20 min.)
- 13. Council Time
- 14. Executive Session
 - a) Economic Development
 - 1) Project Global
 - 2) Project Lion King
 - 3) Project Cricket
 - 4) Project GP
 - 5) Project Shellfish

- a) Contractual Dogwood Hills Golf Course
- b) Personnel Sheriff's Office- Coroner's Office
- 15. Adjournment
- 16. Informal Meeting of the Whole



Government Finance Officers Association 203 N. LaSalle Street - Suite 2700 Chicago, IL 60601

Phone (312) 977-9700 Fax (312) 977-4806

06/16/2015 NEWS RELEASE

For Information contact: Stephen Gauthier (312) 977-9700

(Chicago)--The Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting has been awarded to **Colleton County** by the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR). The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form of recognition in the area of governmental accounting and financial reporting, and its attainment represents a significant accomplishment by a government and its management.

An Award of Financial Reporting Achievement has been awarded to the individual(s), department or agency designated by the government as primarily responsible for preparing the award-winning CAFR. This has been presented to:

Dennis E. Averkin, Chief Financial Officer

The CAFR has been judged by an impartial panel to meet the high standards of the program including demonstrating a constructive "spirit of full disclosure" to clearly communicate its financial story and motivate potential users and user groups to read the CAFR.

The GFOA is a nonprofit professional association serving approximately 17,500 government finance professionals with offices in Chicago, IL, and Washington, D.C.

Sponsor(s) First Reading Committee Referral Committee Consideration Date Committee Recommendation Second Reading Public Hearing Third Reading Effective Date : County Council : June 21, 2015 : N/A : N/A : N/A : July 28, 2015 : September 1, 2015 : September 1, 2015 : Immediately

I, _____, Council Clerk, certify that this Ordinance was advertised for Public Hearing on

ORDINANCE NO. 15-O-10

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[TO PROVIDE FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOT EXCEEDING \$6,000,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF COLLETON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA; TO PRESCRIBE THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE PROCEEDS SHALL BE EXPENDED, INCLUDING THE REFUNDING OF SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE BONDS OF THE COUNTY AND THE ACQUISITION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PURPOSES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.]

TABLE OF CONTENTS

(This Table of Contents for the Ordinance is for convenience of reference only and is not intended to define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provision of the Ordinance)

Page

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Section 1	Defined Terms	2
Section 2	General Rules of Interpretation	5

ARTICLE II

ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Section 1 Authorization of Bonds; Approval of Maturity Dates, Principal Amounts		
	and Interest Rates	5
Section 2	Redemption of Bonds	6
Section 3	Cancellation of Bonds	8
Section 4	Purchase of Bonds	8
Section 5	Medium of Payment	8
Section 6	Place of Payments; Selection of Paying Agent	8
Section 7	Execution of Bonds; Designation of Authenticating Agent	9
Section 8	Form of Bonds; Designation of Bond Registrar	9
Section 9	Registration and Transfers of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners	9
Section 10	Mutilated, Lost, or Stolen Bonds	10
Section 11	Exchange of Bonds	10
Section 12	Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers	11
Section 13	Temporary Bonds	11
Section 14	Book-Entry Only System for the Bonds	11

ARTICLE III

SECURITY FOR BONDS

Section 1	Pledge of Full Faith, Credit, and Taxing Power	13
Section 2	Levy and Collection of Property Taxes	13

ARTICLE IV

SALE OF BONDS; DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS OF SALE

Section 1	Sale of Bonds	13
Section 2	Disposition of Proceeds of Sale of Bonds; Redemption of Outstanding	
	Special Source Revenue Bonds	13

ARTICLE V STATE TAX EXEMPTION OF BONDS

Section 1	Exemption from State	Taxes 1	14
-----------	----------------------	---------	----

ARTICLE VI DEFEASANCE

Section 1	Release of Ordinance	16
Section 2	Deposit of Moneys	17
Section 3	Notice of Release of Ordinance	17

ARTICLE VII

AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING OF ORDINANCE

17
18
19
19
20
•

ARTICLE VIII

CONCERNING THE FISCAL AGENTS

a 1		20
Section 1	Fiscal Agents; Appointment and Acceptance of Duties	20
Section 2	Responsibilities of Fiscal Agents	20
Section 3	Evidence on Which Fiscal Agents May Act	20
Section 4	Compensation	21
Section 5	Certain Permitted Acts	21
Section 6	Resignation of Any Fiscal Agent	21
Section 7	Removal of Fiscal Agent	22
Section 8	Appointment of Successor Fiscal Agents	22
Section 9	Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor	22
Section 10	Merger or Consolidation	23
Section 11	Adoption of Authentication	23

ARTICLE IX

MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1	Execution of Closing Documents and Certificates	23
Section 2	Vice Chairman May Act in Chairman's Absence; Acting Clerk	
	May Act in Clerk's Absence	23
Section 3	Official Statement	24
Section 4	Benefits of Ordinance Limited to the County and Register Owners of the Bon	ds 24

Section 5	Ordinance Binding Upon Successors or Assigns of the County	
Section 6	No Personal Liability	
Section 7	Effect of Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays	
Section 8	Partial Invalidity.	
Section 9	Continuing Disclosure Undertaking	
Section 10	Law and Place of Enforcement of the Ordinance	
Section 11	Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances and Resolutions	
	Notice of Enactment of Ordinance	
Section 13	Effective Date of this Ordinance	

Exhibit A - Form of Bond.

Exhibit B - Form of Official Notice of Sale.

Exhibit C - Form of Notice of Enactment of Ordinance.

Exhibit D - Form of Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.

ORDINANCE 15-O-10

TO PROVIDE FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF NOT EXCEEDING \$6,000,000 TAXABLE GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF COLLETON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA; TO PRESCRIBE THE PURPOSES FOR WHICH THE PROCEEDS SHALL BE EXPENDED, INCLUDING THE REFUNDING OF SPECIAL SOURCE REVENUE BONDS OF THE COUNTY AND THE ACQUISITION OF CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY FOR ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PURPOSES; TO PROVIDE FOR THE PAYMENT THEREOF; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE COUNTY COUNCIL OF COLLETON COUNTY, SOUTH CAROLINA, IN MEETING DULY ASSEMBLED:

As an incident to the enactment of this Ordinance and the issuance of the bonds provided for herein, the County Council of Colleton County, South Carolina (the "County Council"), the governing body of Colleton County, South Carolina (the "County"), find that the facts set forth herein exist and the statements made with respect thereto are true and correct.

WHEREAS, by virtue of Title 4, Chapter 15 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, as amended and continued by Section 11-27-40 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (collectively, the "County Bond Act"), County Council is authorized to issue general obligation bonds of the County for the purpose of defraying the cost of any purpose for which the County may, under applicable constitutional provisions, issue bonds or levy taxes, and for any amount not exceeding the constitutional debt limit applicable to the County; and

WHEREAS, the County Council have now determined that it is in the best interest of the County, and necessary and proper for the general welfare of the County and its citizens, that the County obtain funds for the purpose of defraying a portion of the costs of acquisition of certain real property for purposes of economic development of Colleton County (the "Series 2015 Project") by the issuance of general obligation bonds; and

WHEREAS, County Council have determined that the costs of the Series 2015 Project to be funded with a portion of the proceeds of bonds to be issued hereunder for that purpose is approximately \$1,500,000; and

WHEREAS, by virtue of the Refunding Act (Title 11, Chapter 15, Article 5 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended), as amended and as amended and continued by Section 11-27-40 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended (the Refunding Act, as so amended and continued, being hereinafter called the "Refunding Act"), the County is authorized to issue general obligation refunding bonds of the County to such extent as the County may be indebted by way of principal, interest, and redemption premiums upon any outstanding revenue bonds; and

WHEREAS, the County has previously issued its Capital Improvement and Refunding Special Source Revenue Bonds (Industrial Park Project), Series 2012 (the "Series 2012 Bond"), for the purpose of refunding certain prior issues of special source revenue bonds issued to defray the costs of grading and site work, roads, water, pollution control, sewer facilities and other utilities serving the County's industrial park, and for the construction of buildings and building renovations in the industrial park to enhance the economic development of Colleton County, which Series 2012 Bonds are secured by a pledge of certain fee-in-lieu of tax payments received by the County; and

WHEREAS, the County Council have determined that it is in the best interest of the County to issue refunding bonds at this time and using the proceeds thereof to refund all of the outstanding Series 2012 Bonds by calling them for redemption; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to the authorization of Article X, Section 14, paragraph 7(a) of the South Carolina Constitution, and subject to an eight percent (8%) constitutional debt limit, the County is authorized to incur general obligation indebtedness pursuant to the County Bond Act and the Refunding Act; the assessed value of all taxable property in the County is \$170,613,318 as of December 31, 2014; the County has outstanding general obligation bonded indebtedness (as of June 30, 2015) in the amount of \$4,740,000 which counts against its 8% debt limit; consequently, the County may issue without an election an additional \$8,909,065 of general obligation bonds; and

NOW, THEREFORE, on the basis of the foregoing authorizations and for the purpose of raising the sum of not exceeding \$6,000,000 to be expended (i) to pay costs of the Series 2015 Project and (ii) to refund the Series 2012 Bonds, the County Council enact this Ordinance to affect the issuance and sale of general obligation bonds of the County authorized by the County Bond Act and Refunding Act.

ARTICLE I

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS

Section 1 Defined Terms.

The terms defined in this Article (except as herein otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires) for all purposes of this Ordinance shall have the respective meanings specified in this Article.

"Authenticating Agent" shall mean the authenticating agent for the Bonds designated pursuant to Section 1 of Article II hereof.

"Beneficial Owner" shall mean the person in whose name a Bond is recorded as the beneficial owner of the Bond by a Participant on the records of the Participant or such person's subrogee. "Bonds" shall mean the Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015 of the County authorized to be issued hereunder in the aggregate principal amount of not exceeding \$6,000,000.

"Bond Registrar" shall mean the bond registrar designated pursuant to the provisions of Section 1 of Article II hereof.

"Book-Entry Only System" shall have the meaning attributed to that term in Article II, Section 14 hereof.

"Books of Registry" shall mean the registration books maintained by the Bond Registrar in accordance with Section 8 of Article II hereof.

"Chairman" shall mean the chairman of the County Council or, in his absence, the vice chairman of the County Council.

"Chief Financial Officer" shall mean the Chief Financial Officer of the County or, in his absence, any other officer or employee of the County designated in writing by the County Administrator to perform the duties of the Chief Financial Officer under this Ordinance.

"Clerk" shall mean the clerk of the County Council or, in her absence, the acting clerk.

"Closing Date" shall mean the date upon which there is an exchange of the Bonds for the proceeds representing the purchase price of the Bonds by the Original Purchaser.

"Continuing Disclosure Undertaking" shall mean the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking hereby authorized to be executed by the Chairman on behalf of the County Council, as it may be amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof.

"County" shall mean Colleton County, South Carolina.

"County Administrator" shall mean the County Administrator of the County.

"County Bond Act" shall mean the County Bond Act, Title 4, Chapter 15 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, as further amended and continued by Section 11-27-40 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

"County Council" shall mean the County Council of Colleton County, South Carolina, the governing body of the County or any successor governing body of the County.

"Dated Date" shall mean the date of delivery of the Bonds.

"Debt Service" shall mean the scheduled amount of interest and amortisation of principal payable on the Bonds during the period of computation, excluding amounts scheduled during such period which relate to principal which has been retired before the beginning of such period. "DTC" shall mean The Depository Trust Company, a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, and its successors pursuant to Article II, Section 14 hereof.

"Financial Advisor" shall mean Raymond James & Associates, Inc., the financial advisor to the County.

"Fiscal Agents" shall mean the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, the Authenticating Agent, and any escrow agent under Article VI hereof with respect to the Bonds.

"Interest Payment Date" shall mean any April 1 or October 1, commencing April 1, 2016.

"Letter of Representations" shall mean the Blanket Letter of Representation of the County to DTC dated July 10, 1997.

"Net Proceeds," when used with reference to the Bonds, shall mean the face amount of the Bonds, plus accrued interest and premium, if any.

"Ordinance" shall mean this Ordinance as from time to time amended and supplemented by one or more supplemental ordinances enacted in accordance with the provisions of Article VII hereof.

"Original Purchaser" shall mean the first purchaser of the Bonds from the County.

"Participants" shall mean those broker-dealers, banks, and other financial institutions for which the Securities Depository holds Bonds as securities depository.

"Paying Agent" shall mean the paying agent for the Bonds designated pursuant to Section 1 of Article II hereof.

"Refunding Act" shall mean the Refunding Act (Title 11, Chapter 15, Article 5 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended), as amplified by Title 11, Chapter 21 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, as amended and continued by Section 11-27-40 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended.

"Securities Depository" shall mean the administrator of the book-entry only system for the Bonds, as further described in Article II, Section 14 hereof and any successor appointed as provided in Article II, Section 14 hereof. The initial Securities Depository shall be DTC.

"Series 2012 Bonds" shall mean the County's remaining outstanding \$3,710,000 Capital Improvement and Refunding Special Source Revenue Bonds (Industrial Park Project), Series 2012.

"Series 2015 Project" shall mean the acquisition of certain real property for purposes of economic development of Colleton County as designated by County Council from time to time.

"Sinking Fund Account" shall mean the sinking fund account established and held by the Treasurer of Colleton County designed to provide for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds, as the same respectively fall due.

Section 2 General Rules of Interpretation.

For purposes of this Ordinance, except as otherwise expressly provided or the context otherwise requires:

(a) Articles, Sections, and Paragraphs, mentioned by number are the respective Articles, Sections, and Paragraphs, of this Ordinance so numbered.

(b) Except as otherwise expressly provided or unless the context otherwise requires, words importing persons include firms, associations, and corporations, and the masculine includes the feminine and the neuter.

(c) Words importing the redemption or redeeming or calling for redemption of a Bond do not include or connote the payment of such Bond at its stated maturity or the purchase of such Bond.

(d) Words importing the singular number include the plural number and *vice versa*.

(e) The heading or titles of the several Articles and Sections hereof, and any table of contents appended hereto or to copies hereof, shall be solely for convenience of reference and shall not affect the meaning, construction, interpretation, or effect of this Ordinance.

ARTICLE II

ISSUANCE OF BONDS

Section 1 Authorization of Bonds; Approval of Maturity Dates, Principal Amounts, and Interest Rates.

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of the County Bond Act and the Refunding Act and for the purposes of (i) defraying the costs of the Series 2015 Project, (ii) refunding the Series 2012 Bonds, (iii) paying capitalized interest on the Bonds; and (iv) paying costs of issuance of the Bonds, there shall be issued not exceeding Six Million and no/100 Dollars (\$6,000,000.00) of general obligation bonds of the County. The Bonds shall be designated "Taxable General Obligation Bonds, Series 2015"; and may be issued in one or more series as designated by the County Administrator. The Bonds shall be originally dated the Dated Date, shall be in fully-registered form, shall be in denominations of Five Thousand and no/100 Dollars (\$5,000.00) each or any integral multiple thereof, and may be numbered from R-1 upward.

(b) The Bonds will bear interest at such rates, payable on each Interest Payment Date, and will mature on the dates and in the amounts as are approved by the County Administrator provided

that:

(i) The Bonds shall bear interest at a true interest cost (TIC) not greater than 5.00% per annum.

(ii) The Bonds shall mature not later than April 1, 2032.

(c) The County Administrator is hereby expressly delegated the authority to approve the sale and issuance of the Bonds so long as they conform to all of the parameters set forth in this Ordinance, including, but not limited to, this Section 1 of Article II.

(d) The Paying Agent, Authenticating Agent, and Bond Registrar shall be such institution as designated by the County Administrator as in the best interest of the County.

<u>Section 2</u> <u>Redemption of Bonds</u>.

(a) <u>General</u>. The Bonds may not be called for redemption by the County except as provided in this Section 2.

(b) <u>Redemption.</u> The Bonds may be subject to redemption prior to their maturity, in whole or in part, and by lot as to Bonds or portions of Bonds within a maturity (but only in integral multiples of \$5,000), upon the terms and on the dates and at the redemption prices as approved by the County Administrator prior to the issuance of the Bonds.

(c) <u>Partial Redemption of Bonds.</u> In the event that only part of the principal amount of a Bond shall be called for redemption or prepaid, payment of the amount to be redeemed or prepaid shall be made only upon surrender of that Bond to the Paying Agent. Upon surrender of such Bond, the County shall execute and the Authenticating Agent shall authenticate and deliver to the holder thereof, at the office of the Authenticating Agent, or send to such holder by registered mail at his request, risk, and expense, a new fully-executed Bond or Bonds, of authorized denominations equal in aggregate principal amount to, and of the same maturity and interest rate as, the unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered.

(d) <u>Official Notice of Redemption.</u> (i) Unless waived by any registered owner of Bonds to be redeemed, official notice of any such redemption shall be given by the County by mailing a copy of an official redemption notice by first class mail at least thirty (30) days and not more than sixty (60) days prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered owners of the Bond or Bonds to be redeemed at the address shown on the Books of Registry. Notice of redemption shall describe whether and the conditions under which the call for redemption may be revoked. Failure to give notice by mail or any defect in any notice so mailed with respect to any Bond shall not affect the validity of the proceedings for such redemption for Bonds for which notice was properly given.

- (ii) All official notices of redemption shall be dated and shall state:
 - (A) the redemption date,

- (B) the redemption price,
- (C) if less than all outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the identification (and, in the case of partial redemption, the respective principal amounts) of the Bonds to be redeemed,
- (D) that on the redemption date the redemption price will become due and payable upon each such Bond or portion thereof called for redemption, and that interest thereon shall cease to accrue from and after such date, and
- (E) the place where such Bonds are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price.

(e) <u>Conditional Notice of Redemption of Bonds Permitted</u>. In the case of an optional redemption, the notice may state (i) that it is conditioned upon the deposit of moneys, in an amount equal to the amount necessary to effect the redemption, with the Trustee no later than the redemption date or (ii) that the County retains the right to rescind such notice on or prior to the scheduled redemption date (in either case, a "Conditional Redemption"), and such notice and optional redemption shall be of no effect if such moneys are not so deposited or if the notice is rescinded.

(f) <u>Deposit of Funds.</u> At least one day prior to any redemption date, the County shall deposit with the Paying Agent an amount of money sufficient to pay the redemption price of all the Bonds or portions of Bonds which are to be redeemed on that date.

(g) Effect of Deposit of Funds. Official notice of redemption having been given as aforesaid, the Bonds or portions of Bonds so to be redeemed shall, on the redemption date, become due and payable at the redemption price therein specified, and from and after such date (unless (i) the County shall have revoked the redemption in accordance with the terms set forth in the official notice of redemption or (ii) the County shall default in the payment of the redemption price) such Bonds or portions of Bonds shall cease to bear interest. If said money shall not be available on the redemption date, such bonds or portions thereof shall continue to bear interest until paid at the same rate as they would have borne had they not been called for redemption. Upon surrender of such Bonds for redemption price. Instalments of interest due on or prior to the redemption date shall be payable as herein provided for payment of interest. Upon surrender for any partial redemption of any Bond, there shall be prepared for the registered owner a new Bond or Bonds of the same maturity in the amount of the unpaid principal. All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent and shall not be reissued.

(h) <u>Further Notice</u>. In addition to the foregoing notice, further notice shall be given by the County as set out below, but no defect in such further notice nor any failure to give all or any portion of such further notice shall in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemption if official notice thereof is given as above prescribed. Such further notice of redemption may be combined with official notice as above prescribed in a single notice.

(i) Each further notice of redemption given hereunder shall contain the information required above for an official notice of redemption and (A) the CUSIP numbers

of all Bonds being redeemed; (B) the date of issue of the Bond as originally issued; (C) the rate of interest borne by each Bond being redeemed; (D) the maturity date of each Bond being redeemed; and (E) any other descriptive information needed to identify accurately the Bonds being redeemed.

(ii) Each further notice of redemption shall be sent at least thirty-five (35) days before the redemption date by registered or certified mail or overnight delivery service to all registered securities depositories then in the business of holding substantial amounts of obligations of types comprising the Bonds and to one or more national information services that disseminate notices of redemption of obligations such as the Bonds.

(iii) Upon the payment of the redemption price of Bonds being redeemed, each cheque or other transfer of funds issued for such purpose shall bear the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such cheque or other transfer.

Section 3 Cancellation of Bonds.

All Bonds which have been redeemed shall be cancelled and either maintained or destroyed by the Paying Agent and shall not be reissued. A counterpart of the certificate of destruction evidencing such destruction shall be furnished by the Paying Agent to the County upon the request of the County Administrator.

Section 4 Purchase of Bonds.

The Paying Agent shall, if and to the extent practicable, endeavor to purchase Bonds or portions of Bonds at the written direction of the County at the time, in the manner, and at the price as may be specified by the County. The Paying Agent may so purchase the Bonds; provided that any limitations or restrictions on such redemption or purchases contained in this Ordinance shall be complied with. The expenses of such purchase shall be deemed an expense of the Paying Agent to be paid by the County. The Paying Agent shall incur no liability for any purchase made in accordance with this Section or for its inability to affect such purchase in excess of the redemption price thereof.

Section 5 Medium of Payment.

Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be payable in any coin or currency of the United States of America which is, at the time of payment, legal tender for the payment of public and private debts.

Section 6 Place of Payments; Selection of Paying Agent.

Principal and premium, if any, of the Bonds, when due, shall be payable at the corporate trust office of the Paying Agent. Interest on any Bond shall be payable on each Interest Payment Date by cheque or draught mailed to the person in whose name such Bond is registered at the close of

business on the fifteenth (15th) day (whether or not a business day) of the calendar month next preceding such Interest Payment Date (the Regular Record Date) by the Paying Agent. Principal of, redemption premium, if any, and interest payable to any person holding Bonds in aggregate principal amount of \$1,000,000 or more will be paid, upon the written request of any such registered owner in form and substance satisfactory to the Paying Agent, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to an account within any of the continental United States of America designated by such registered owner on or before the Record Date.

<u>Section 7</u> <u>Execution of Bonds; Designation of Authenticating Agent.</u>

(a) The Bonds shall be executed in the name of the County by the manual or facsimile signature of the Chairman, and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of the Clerk, and the seal of the County shall be impressed or reproduced on each Bond. Any facsimile signature appearing on the Bonds may be that of the officer who is in the office on the date of the enactment of this Ordinance. The Bonds shall be executed in respect of any manual signature by the person or persons holding office when such Bonds are ready for delivery. The execution of the Bonds in this fashion shall be valid and effective notwithstanding changes in the personnel of any of the above offices subsequent to their execution.

(b) The Bonds shall bear a certificate of authentication, substantially in the form set forth in <u>Exhibit A</u>, duly executed by the Authenticating Agent. The Authenticating Agent shall authenticate each Bond with the manual signature of an authorized officer of the Authenticating Agent, but it shall not be necessary for the same authorized officer to authenticate all of the Bonds. Only such authenticated Bonds shall be entitled to any right or benefit under this Ordinance. Such certificate on any Bond issued hereunder shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond has been duly issued and is secured by the provisions hereof.

Section 8 Form of Bonds; Designation of Bond Registrar.

(a) The Bonds shall be issued in fully-registered form, and all principal, interest, or other amounts due thereunder shall be payable only to the registered owner thereof. The County Council hereby directs the Bond Registrar to maintain, at the County's expense, the Books of Registry for the registration or transfer of the Bonds.

(b) The form of the Bonds and assignment provisions to be endorsed thereon shall be substantially as set forth in <u>Exhibit A</u> attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance with any appropriate variations, legends, omissions, and insertions as permitted or required by this Ordinance or law.

Section 9 Registration and Transfers of Bonds; Persons Treated as Owners.

(a) Each Bond shall be fully-registered and no Bond may be transferred except by the registered owner thereof in person or by his attorney duly authorized in writing upon surrender thereof together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. Upon the transfer of any such registered

Bond or Bonds, the County shall execute and the Authenticating Agent shall authenticate and deliver, subject to the provisions of Section 12 of this Article, in the name of the transferee, a new registered Bond or Bonds of the same aggregate principal amount as the unpaid principal amount of the surrendered Bond or Bonds.

(b) Any registered owner requesting any transfer shall pay all taxes or other governmental charges required to be paid with respect thereto. Any purported assignment in contravention of the foregoing requirements shall be, as to the County, absolutely null and void. The person in whose name any Bond shall be registered shall be deemed and regarded as the absolute owner thereof for all purposes, and payment of the principal of and interest on such Bonds shall be made only to or upon the order of the registered owner or his legal representative. All such payments shall be valid and effective to satisfy and discharge the liability of the County upon such Bond to the extent of the sum or sums so paid. No person other than the registered owner shall have any right to receive payments, pursue remedies, enforce obligations, or exercise or enjoy any other rights under any Bond against the County. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall limit the rights of a person having a beneficial interest in any Bond as against a person (including the registered owner) other than the County, as in the case where the registered owner is a trustee or nominee for two or more beneficial owners of an interest in any Bond.

(c) The Bond Registrar shall not be required to exchange or transfer any Bond or portion thereof (i) for which notice of redemption has been mailed to the registered owner thereof or (ii) for the period beginning on the Regular Record Date and ending on the next succeeding Interest Payment Date.

Section 10 Mutilated, Lost, or Stolen Bonds.

In the event any Bond is mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed, the County may execute and the Authenticating Agent may authenticate a new Bond of like date, maturity, interest rate, and denomination, as that mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed; provided that, in the case of any mutilated Bonds, they shall first be surrendered to the Paying Agent, and in the case of any lost, stolen, or destroyed Bonds, there shall be first furnished to the County and the Paying Agent evidence of their loss, theft, or destruction satisfactory to the County and the Paying Agent, together with indemnity satisfactory to them; provided that in the case of a registered owner which is a bank or insurance company, the agreement of such bank or insurance company to indemnify the County and the Paying Agent shall be sufficient. In the event any such Bonds shall have matured, instead of issuing a duplicate Bond, the County may pay the same without surrender thereof. The County, the Paying Agent, and the Authenticating Agent, may charge the registered owner of such Bond with their reasonable fees and expenses to replace mutilated, lost, stolen, or destroyed Bonds.

Section 11 Exchange of Bonds.

Subject to the provisions of Section 9 of this Article, the Bonds, upon surrender thereof to the Bond Registrar with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the Bond Registrar, duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, may, at the option of the registered owner thereof, and upon payment by such registered owner of any charges which the Paying Agent, the

Authenticating Agent, or the Bond Registrar may make as provided in Section 12 of this Article, be exchanged for a principal amount of Bonds of any other authorized denominations equal to the unpaid principal amount of surrendered Bonds.

Section 12 Regulations with Respect to Exchanges and Transfers.

In all cases in which the privilege of exchanging or transferring the Bonds is exercised, the County shall execute and the Authenticating Agent shall authenticate and deliver the Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. All Bonds surrendered in any such exchanges or transfers shall forthwith be cancelled by the Paying Agent. There shall be no charge for such exchange or transfer of the Bonds except that the Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, and the Authenticating Agent, may make a charge sufficient to reimburse them, or any of them, for any tax or other governmental charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer.

Section 13 Temporary Bonds.

The Bonds may be initially issued in temporary form, exchangeable for definitive Bonds to be delivered as soon as practicable. The temporary Bonds may be printed, lithographed, or typewritten, shall be of such denominations as may be determined by the County Council, shall be without coupons, and may contain such reference to any of the provisions of this Ordinance as may be appropriate. Every temporary Bond shall be executed by the County upon the same conditions and in substantially the same manner as the definitive Bonds. If the County issues temporary Bonds, it will execute and furnish definitive Bonds without delay, and thereupon the temporary Bonds shall be surrendered for cancellation at the office of the Paying Agent and the Paying Agent shall deliver and exchange for such temporary Bonds an equal, aggregate principal amount of definitive Bonds of like aggregate principal amount and in authorized denominations of the same maturity or maturities and interest rate or rates. Until so exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits under this Ordinance as definitive Bonds under this Ordinance.

Section 14 Book-Entry Only System for the Bonds.

(a) The provisions of this section shall apply with respect to any Bond registered to Cede & Co. or any other nominee of DTC while the book-entry only system (the "Book-Entry Only System") provided for herein is in effect and shall, during the period of their application, supersede any contrary provisions of this Ordinance.

(b) The Bonds shall be issued as a single Bond for each maturity. On the date of the initial authentication and delivery of all of the Bonds, the Bonds shall be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC as the registered owner of the Bonds. With respect to Bonds registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, the County shall have no responsibility or obligation to any Participant (which means securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and various other entities, some of whom, or their representatives, own DTC) or to any Beneficial Owner (which means, when used with reference to the Book-Entry Only System, the person who is considered the beneficial owner thereof pursuant to the arrangements for book entry determination of ownership applicable to DTC) with respect to the following: (i) the accuracy

of the records of DTC, Cede & Co., or any Participant with respect to any ownership interests in the Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any Participant, any Beneficial Owner, or any other person, other than DTC, of any notice with respect to the Bonds, including any notice of redemption, or (iii) the payment to any Participant, or any Beneficial Owner, or any other person, other than DTC, of any amount with respect to the principal of or premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds. The Paying Agent shall pay all principal of and premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of DTC, and all such payments shall be valid and effective fully to satisfy and discharge the County's obligations with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds to the extent of the sum so paid. No person other than DTC has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of Cede & Co., the words "Cede & Co." in this section shall refer to such new nominee of DTC.

(c) Upon receipt by the County of written notice from DTC to the effect that DTC is unable or unwilling to discharge its responsibilities hereunder, the County shall issue, transfer, and exchange Bonds as requested by DTC in authorized denominations, and whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the County will coöperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to arrange for a substitute Securities Depository willing and able upon reasonable and customary terms to maintain custody of the Bonds registered in whatever name or names the registered owners transferring or exchanging such Bonds shall designate in accordance with this section.

(d) In the event the County determines that it is in the best interests of the Beneficial Owners that they be able to obtain Bonds registered in the name of a registered owner other than DTC, the County may so notify DTC, whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of such Bonds. In such event, upon the return by DTC of Bonds held by DTC in the name of Cede & Co., the County shall issue, transfer, and exchange Bonds in authorized denominations as requested by DTC, and whenever DTC requests the County to do so, the County will coöperate with DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to make available Bonds registered in whatever name or names the Beneficial Owners transferring or exchanging Bonds shall designate, in accordance with this section.

(e) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Ordinance to the contrary, so long as any Bond is registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the principal of and premium, if any, and interest on such Bond and all notices with respect to such Bond shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as provided in the Letter of Representations delivered by the County to DTC.

(f) In the event that the Book-Entry Only System pursuant to this section is discontinued, the Bonds shall be issued, transferred, and exchanged through DTC and its Participants to the Beneficial Owners.

ARTICLE III

SECURITY FOR BONDS

Section 1 Pledge of Full Faith, Credit, and Taxing Power.

For the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds as the same respectively mature, and for the creation of such Sinking Fund Account as may be necessary therefor, the full faith, credit, and taxing power, of the County are irrevocably pledged, and there shall be levied annually by the Auditor of Colleton County, and collected by the Treasurer of Colleton County, in the same manner as other County taxes are levied and collected, a tax, without limit, on all taxable property in the County, sufficient to pay the principal and interest of the Bonds as they respectively mature, and to create such Sinking Fund Account as may be necessary therefor.

<u>Section 2</u> <u>Levy and Collection of Property Taxes.</u>

The Auditor and Treasurer of Colleton County, South Carolina, shall be notified of this issue of Bonds and directed to levy and collect, respectively, upon all taxable property in the County, an annual tax, without limit, sufficient to meet the payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, as the same respectively mature, and to create such Sinking Fund Account as may be necessary therefor.

ARTICLE IV

SALE OF BONDS; DISPOSITION OF PROCEEDS OF SALE

Section 1 Sale of Bonds.

The Bonds shall be sold at public sale, at the price of not less than 100% of par and accrued interest to the date of delivery, in accordance with Section 11-27-40(9)(b) of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended, on the terms and conditions as are approved by the County Administrator. The County Administrator is hereby expressly delegated the authority to approve the sale of the Bonds so long as they conform to all of the parameters set forth in Section 1 of Article II hereof. The sale of the Bonds shall be advertised as directed by the Chief Financial Officer in accordance with the County Bond Act. The form of said Notice, and the conditions of sale, are substantially those set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto and made a part and parcel hereof. Bids for the purchase of the Bonds may be received in such form as determined by the County Administrator to be in the best interest of the County.

<u>Section 2</u> <u>Disposition of Proceeds of Sale of Bonds; Redemption of Outstanding Special</u> Source Revenue Bonds.

(a) The proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall be made use of by the County Council as follows:

(i) Any accrued interest shall be deposited in the Sinking Fund Account and applied to the payment of the first instalment of interest to become due on the Bonds.

(ii) Any premium shall be applied as directed by the County Administrator upon the advice of the Financial Advisor.

(iii) The remaining proceeds derived from the sale of the Bonds shall be applied as follows:

(A) Sufficient proceeds shall be applied to defray the costs of issuance of the Bonds.

(B) Sufficient proceeds shall be deposited in Sinking Fund Account to pay interest on the Bonds through April 1, 2016.

(C) Proceeds shall be applied by the County to pay the redemption price of the County's outstanding Capital Improvement and Refunding Special Source Revenue Bonds (Industrial Park Project), Series 2012 (the "Series 2012 Bonds"), including premium, if any.

(D) Proceeds shall be applied as directed by the County Administrator to pay the costs of the Series 2015 Project.

(E) Any remaining proceeds of the Bonds, after their application to the purposes set forth in subparagraphs (A) through (D) above, together with investment earnings on the proceeds of the Bonds, shall be applied as directed by the County Council to defray costs of capital projects of the County.

(b) No purchaser or registered owner of the Bonds shall be liable for the proper application of the proceeds thereof.

(c) The County Council hereby authorizes the County Administrator, upon the advice of the Financial Advisor and bond counsel, to call for redemption the County's remaining outstanding Series 2012 Bonds.

ARTICLE V

STATE TAX EXEMPTION OF BONDS

<u>Section 1</u> <u>Exemption from State Taxes.</u>

Both the principal of and interest on the Bonds shall be exempt from all state, county, municipal, school district, and all other taxes or assessments of the State of South Carolina, direct or indirect, general or special, whether imposed for the purpose of general revenue or otherwise, except inheritance, estate, or transfer taxes.

ARTICLE VI

DEFEASANCE

Section 1 Release of Ordinance.

(a) If all of the Bonds issued pursuant to this Ordinance shall have been paid and discharged, then the obligations of the County under this Ordinance, and all other rights granted thereby shall cease and determine. Bonds shall be deemed to have been paid and discharged within the meaning of this Article in each of the following circumstances:

(i) If the Paying Agent shall hold, at the stated maturities of such Bonds, in trust and irrevocably appropriated thereto, moneys for the full payment thereof; or

(ii) If default in the payment of the principal of such Bonds or the interest thereon shall have occurred, and thereafter tender of such payment shall have been made, and the Paying Agent shall hold, in trust and irrevocably appropriated thereto, sufficient moneys for the payment thereof to the date of the tender of such payment; or

(iii) If the County shall have deposited with the Paying Agent or other escrow agent meeting the requirements of a Fiscal Agent hereunder, in an irrevocable trust, either moneys in an amount which shall be sufficient, or direct general obligations of the United States of America, which are not subject to redemption by the issuer prior to the date of maturity of the Bonds to be defeased, the principal of and interest on which, when due, and without reinvestment thereof, will provide moneys, which, together with the moneys, if any, so deposited at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay, when due, the principal, interest, and redemption premium or premiums, if any, due or to become due on and prior to the maturity date or dates; or

(iv) If there shall have been so deposited either moneys in an amount which shall be sufficient, or direct general obligations of the United States of America the principal of and interest on which, when due, will provide moneys which, together with the moneys, if any, so deposited at the same time, shall be sufficient to pay, when due, the principal and interest due or to become due on the Bonds on the maturity thereof.

(b) In addition to the above requirements of paragraphs (i), (ii), (iii), or (iv), in order for this Ordinance to be discharged, all other fees, expenses, and charges of the Fiscal Agents, shall have been paid in full at such time.

(c) Notwithstanding the satisfaction and discharge of this Ordinance, the Fiscal Agents shall continue to be obligated to hold in trust any moneys or investments then held by the Paying Agent for the payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds, to pay to the registered owners of Bonds the funds so held by the Fiscal Agents as and when such payment becomes due.

(d) Any release under this Section shall be without prejudice to the rights of the Fiscal Agents to be paid reasonable compensation for all services rendered under this Ordinance and all reasonable expenses, charges, and other disbursements and those of their respective attorneys, agents, and employees, incurred on and about the administration of trusts by this Ordinance created and the performance of the powers and duties under this Ordinance of the Fiscal Agents.

Section 2 Deposit of Moneys.

Any moneys which at any time shall be deposited with a Fiscal Agent by or on behalf of the County for the purpose of paying and discharging any Bonds shall be and are hereby assigned, transferred, and set over to the Fiscal Agent in trust for the respective registered owners of such Bonds, and such moneys shall be and are hereby irrevocably appropriated to the payment and discharge thereof. If, through lapse of time or otherwise, the registered owners of such Bonds shall no longer be entitled to enforce payment of their obligations, then, in such event, it shall be the duty of the Fiscal Agent to transfer such funds to the County.

Section 3 Notice of Release of Ordinance.

(a) In the event any of said Bonds are not to be redeemed within the sixty (60) days next succeeding the date the deposit required by Section 1(a)(iii) or (iv) of this Article is made, the County shall give the Fiscal Agent irrevocable instructions to mail, as soon as practicable by first class mail, a notice to the registered owners of such Bonds at the addresses shown on the Books of Registry that (i) the deposit required by subparagraph (a)(iii) or (a)(iv) of Section 1 of this Article has been made with the Fiscal Agent, and (ii) said Bonds are deemed to have been paid in accordance with this Article and stating such maturity or redemption dates upon which moneys are to be available for the payment of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, said Bonds.

(b) The County covenants and agrees that any moneys which it shall deposit with the Fiscal Agent shall be deemed to be deposited in accordance with, and subject to, the applicable provisions of this Article.

ARTICLE VII

AMENDING AND SUPPLEMENTING OF ORDINANCE

Section 1 Amending and Supplementing of Ordinance Without Consent of Registered Owners of Bonds.

(a) The County Council, from time to time and at any time and without the consent or concurrence of any registered owner of any Bond, may enact an ordinance amendatory hereof or supplemental thereto, if the provisions of such supplemental ordinance shall not materially adversely affect the rights of the registered owners of the Bonds then outstanding, for any one or more of the following purposes:

(i) To make any changes or corrections in this Ordinance as to which the County Council shall have been advised by counsel that the same are verbal corrections or changes or are required for the purpose of curing and correcting any ambiguity or defective or inconsistent provision or omission or mistake or manifest error contained in this Ordinance, or to insert in this Ordinance such provisions clarifying matters or questions arising under this Ordinance as are necessary or desirable;

(ii) To add additional covenants and agreements of the County for the purpose of further securing the payment of the Bonds;

(iii) To surrender any right, power, or privilege reserved to or conferred upon the County by the terms of this Ordinance;

(iv) To grant or confer upon the registered owners of the Bonds any additional rights, remedies, powers, authority, or security that lawfully may be granted to or conferred upon them; or

(v) To make such additions, deletions, or modifications as may be necessary to assure compliance with section 148(f) of the Code relating to required rebate to the United States of America or otherwise as may be necessary to assure the exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds for purposes of federal income taxation.

(b) The County Council shall not enact any supplemental ordinance authorized by the foregoing provisions of this Section unless in the opinion of counsel (which opinion may be combined with the opinion required by Section 4 hereof) the enactment of such supplemental ordinance is permitted by the foregoing provisions of this Section and the provisions of such supplemental ordinance do not adversely affect the rights of the registered owners of the Bonds then outstanding.

Section 2 Amending and Supplementing of Ordinance With Consent of Registered Owners of Bonds.

(a) With the consent of the registered owners of not less than a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding the County Council from time to time and at any time may enact an ordinance amendatory hereof or supplemental hereto for the purpose of adding any provisions to, or changing in any manner or eliminating any of the provisions of, this Ordinance, or modifying or amending the rights or obligations of the County under this Ordinance, or modifying or amending in any manner the registered owners of the Bonds then outstanding; provided, however, that without the specific consent of the registered owner of each such Bond which would be affected thereby, no supplemental ordinance amending or supplementing the provisions hereof shall: (i) change the fixed maturity date of any Bond or the dates for the payment of interest thereon or the redemption thereof, or reduce the principal amount of any Bond or the rate of interest thereon or the redemption price (or the redemption premium) payable upon the redemption or prepayment thereof; (ii) reduce the aforesaid percentage of Bonds, the registered owners of which are required to consent to any supplemental ordinance amending or supplementing the provisions of

this Ordinance; or (iii) give to any Bond or Bonds any preference over any other Bond or Bonds secured hereby. Nothing in this paragraph contained, however, shall be construed as making necessary the approval of the registered owners of the Bonds of the enactment of any supplemental ordinance authorized by the provisions of Section 1 of this Article.

(b) It shall not be necessary that the consents of the registered owners of the Bonds approve the particular form of the wording of the proposed amendment or supplement or of the supplemental ordinance effecting such amending or supplementing hereof pursuant to this Section. The County shall mail a notice at least once, not more than thirty (30) days after the effective date of such amendment or supplement, of such amendment or supplement postage prepaid, to each registered owner of Bonds then outstanding at his address appearing upon the Books of Registry and to the Paying Agent, but failure to mail copies of such notice to any of the registered owners shall not affect the validity of the supplemental ordinance effecting such amendments or supplements or the consents thereto. Nothing in this paragraph contained, however, shall be construed as requiring the giving of notice of any amendment or supplement of this Ordinance authorized by Section 1 of this Article. No action or proceeding to set aside or invalidate such supplemental ordinance or any of the proceedings for its enactment shall be instituted or maintained unless such action or proceeding is commenced within sixty (60) days after the mailing of the notice required by this paragraph.

Section 3 Notation Upon Bonds; New Bonds Issued Upon Amendments.

Bonds delivered after the effective date of any action taken as provided in this Article may bear a notation as to such action, by endorsement or otherwise and in form approved by the County. In that case, upon demand of the registered owner of any Bond outstanding after such effective date and upon the presentation of the Bond for such purpose at the office of the Paying Agent, and at such additional offices, if any, as the County may select and designate for that purpose, a suitable notation shall be made on such Bond. If the County shall so determine, new Bonds, so modified as in the opinion of the County upon the advice of counsel to conform to the amendments or supplements made pursuant to this Article, shall be prepared, executed, and delivered, and upon demand of the registered owner of any Bond then outstanding shall be exchanged without cost to such registered owner for Bonds then outstanding, upon surrender of such outstanding Bonds.

Section 4 Effectiveness of Supplemental Ordinance.

Upon the enactment (pursuant to this Article and applicable law) by the County Council of any supplemental ordinance amending or supplementing the provisions of this Ordinance and the delivery to the Paying Agent and the County Council of an opinion of bond counsel that such supplemental ordinance is in due form and has been duly enacted in accordance with the provisions hereof and applicable law and that the provisions thereof are valid and binding upon the County, or upon such later date as may be specified in such supplemental ordinance, (a) this Ordinance and the Bonds shall be modified and amended in accordance with such supplemental ordinance, (b) the respective rights, limitations of rights, obligations, duties, and immunities, under this Ordinance of the County, the Fiscal Agents, and the registered owners of the Bonds, shall thereafter be determined, exercised, and enforced under this Ordinance subject in all respects to such modifications and amendments, and (c) all of the terms and conditions of any such supplemental ordinance shall be a part of the terms and conditions of the Bonds and of this Ordinance for any and all purposes.

Section 5 Supplemental Ordinance Affecting Fiscal Agents.

No supplemental ordinance changing, amending, or modifying any of the rights, duties, and obligations of any Fiscal Agent appointed by or pursuant to the provisions of this Ordinance may be enacted by the County Council or be consented to by the registered owners of the Bonds without written consent of such Fiscal Agent affected thereby.

ARTICLE VIII

CONCERNING THE FISCAL AGENTS

Section 1 Fiscal Agents; Appointment and Acceptance of Duties.

The Paying Agent, the Bond Registrar, the Authenticating Agent, and any escrow agent with respect to the Bonds shall accept the duties and trusts imposed upon it by this Ordinance and shall agree in writing to perform such trusts but only upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Article VIII. Similarly, each financial institution appointed as a successor Paying Agent, Bond Registrar, Authenticating Agent, or escrow agent shall signify its acceptance of the duties and trusts imposed by this Ordinance by a written acceptance.

Section 2 Responsibilities of Fiscal Agents.

The recitals of fact contained herein and in the Bonds shall be taken as the statements of the County and no Fiscal Agent shall be deemed to assume any responsibility for the correctness of the same except in respect of the authentication certificate of the Authenticating Agent endorsed on the Bonds. No Fiscal Agent shall be deemed to make any representations as to the validity or sufficiency of this Ordinance or of any Bonds or as to the security afforded by this Ordinance, and no Fiscal Agent shall incur any liability in respect thereof. No Fiscal Agent shall be under any responsibility or duty with respect to the application of any moneys paid to any other Fiscal Agent. No Fiscal Agent shall be under any obligation or duty to perform any act which would involve it in expense or liability or to institute or defend any suit in respect hereof or to advance any of its own moneys, unless indemnified to its reasonable satisfaction. No Fiscal Agent shall be liable in the performance of its duties hereunder except for its own negligence or wilful misconduct.

Section 3 Evidence on Which Fiscal Agents May Act.

(a) Each Fiscal Agent, upon receipt of any notice, ordinance, request, consent, order, certificate, report, opinion, bond, or other paper or document furnished to it pursuant to any provision of this Ordinance, shall examine such instrument to determine whether it conforms to the requirements of this Ordinance and shall be protected in acting upon any such instrument believed by it to be genuine and to have been signed or presented by the proper party or parties. Each Fiscal

Agent may consult with counsel, who may or may not be of counsel to the County, and the opinion of such counsel shall be full and complete authorization and protection in respect of any action taken or suffered by it under this Ordinance in good faith and in accordance therewith.

(b) Whenever any Fiscal Agent shall deem it necessary or desirable that a matter be proved or established prior to taking or suffering any action under this Ordinance, such matter (unless other evidence in respect thereof be therein specifically prescribed) may be deemed to be conclusively proved and established by a certificate of the Chairman, and such certificate shall be full warrant for any action taken or suffered in good faith under the provisions of this Ordinance; but in its discretion the Fiscal Agent may in lieu thereof accept other evidence of such fact or matter or may require such further or additional evidence as it may deem reasonable.

(c) Except as otherwise expressly provided in this Ordinance, any request, order, notice, or other direction required or permitted to be furnished pursuant to any provision hereof by the County to any Fiscal Agent shall be sufficiently executed if executed in the name of the County by the Chairman.

Section 4 Compensation.

The County shall pay to each Fiscal Agent from time to time reasonable compensation based on the then standard fee schedule of the Fiscal Agent for all services rendered under this Ordinance, and also all reasonable expenses, charges, counsel fees and other disbursements, including those of its attorneys, agents, and employees, incurred in and about the performance of their powers and duties under this Ordinance; provided, however, that any specific agreement between the County and a Fiscal Agent with respect to the compensation of that Fiscal Agent shall control the compensation to be paid to it.

Section 5 Certain Permitted Acts.

Any Fiscal Agent may become the owner or underwriter of any bonds, notes, or other obligations of the County, or conduct any banking activities with respect to the County, with the same rights it would have if it were not a Fiscal Agent. To the extent permitted by law, any Fiscal Agent may act as a depository for and permit any of its officers or directors to effect or aid in any reorganization growing out of the enforcement of the Bonds or this Ordinance.

Section 6 Resignation of Any Fiscal Agent.

Any Fiscal Agent may at any time resign and be discharged of the duties and obligations created by this Ordinance by giving not less than sixty (60) days' written notice to the County and not less than thirty (30) days' written notice to the registered owners of the Bonds (as established by the Books of Registry) prior to the next succeeding Interest Payment Date, and such resignation shall take effect upon the date specified in such notice unless a successor shall have been appointed previously by the County pursuant to Section 8 of this Article VIII, in which event such resignation shall take effect immediately upon the appointment of such successor. In no event, however, shall such a resignation take effect until a successor has been appointed.

Section 7 Removal of Fiscal Agent.

Any Fiscal Agent may be removed at any time by an instrument or concurrent instruments in writing, filed with the County and such Fiscal Agent, and signed by either the Chairman or the registered owners representing a majority in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding or their attorneys in fact duly authorized.

<u>Section 8</u> <u>Appointment of Successor Fiscal Agents.</u>

(a) In case any Fiscal Agent hereunder shall resign or be removed, or be dissolved, or shall be in the course of dissolution or liquidation, or otherwise become incapable of acting hereunder, or in case it shall be taken under the control of any public officer or officers, or of a receiver appointed by a court, a successor shall be appointed by the County. Every such Fiscal Agent appointed pursuant to the provisions of this Section 8 shall be a trust company or bank organized under state or federal laws and which is in good standing, within or outside the State of South Carolina, having a stockholders' equity of not less than \$25,000,000 if there be such institution willing, qualified, and able to accept the trust upon reasonable and customary terms.

(b) If in a proper case no appointment of a successor Fiscal Agent shall be made by the County pursuant to the foregoing provisions of this Section 8 within forty-five (45) days after any Fiscal Agent shall have given to the County written notice as provided in Section 6 of this Article VIII or after a vacancy in the office of such Fiscal Agent shall have occurred by reason of its removal or inability to act, the former Fiscal Agent or any registered owner may apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint a successor. Said court may thereupon, after notice, if any, as the court may deem proper, appoint a successor.

Section 9 Transfer of Rights and Property to Successor.

Any successor Fiscal Agent appointed under this Ordinance shall execute, acknowledge, and deliver to its predecessor, and also to the County, an instrument accepting such appointment, and thereupon the successor, without any further act, deed, or conveyance, shall become fully vested with all moneys, estates, properties, rights, powers, duties, and obligations of the predecessor Fiscal Agent, with like effect as if originally named in that capacity; but the Fiscal Agent ceasing to act shall nevertheless, at the request of the County or at the written request of the successor Fiscal Agent, execute, acknowledge, and deliver, all instruments of conveyance and further assurance and do all things as may reasonably be required for more fully and certainly vesting and confirming in the successor Fiscal Agent all the right, title, and interest, of the predecessor Fiscal Agent in and to any property held by it under this Ordinance, and shall pay over, assign, and deliver, to the successor Fiscal Agent any money or other property subject to the trusts and conditions herein set forth. Should any deed, conveyance, or instrument in writing, from the County be required by such successor Fiscal Agent for more fully and certainly vesting in and confirming to such successor any such estates, rights, powers, and duties, any and all such deeds, conveyances, and instruments in writing, shall, on request, and so far as may be authorized by law, be executed, acknowledged, and

delivered, by the County. Each successor Fiscal Agent shall promptly notify the other Fiscal Agents, if any, of its appointment as Fiscal Agent.

Section 10 Merger or Consolidation.

Any corporation or other organization into which any Fiscal Agent may be merged or converted or with which it may be consolidated or any corporation or other organization resulting from any merger, conversion, or consolidation or other organization to which it may be party or any corporation or other organization to which any Fiscal Agent may sell or transfer all or substantially all of its corporate trust business, provided such corporation or other organization shall be a bank or trust company organized under state or federal laws, and shall be authorized by law to perform all the duties imposed upon it by this Ordinance, shall be the successor to such Fiscal Agent without the execution or filing of any paper or the performance of any further act.

Section 11 Adoption of Authentication.

In case any of the Bonds contemplated to be issued under this Ordinance shall have been authenticated but not delivered, any successor Authenticating Agent may adopt the certificate of authentication of any predecessor Authenticating Agent so authenticating such Bonds and deliver such Bonds so authenticated. In case any such Bonds shall not have been authenticated, any successor Authenticating Agent may authenticate such Bonds in the name of the predecessor Authenticating Agent or in the name of the successor Authenticating Agent, and in all such cases such certificate shall be of full force and effect.

ARTICLE IX

MISCELLANEOUS

<u>Section 1</u> <u>Execution of Closing Documents and Certificates.</u>

The Chairman, the Clerk, the County Administrator, the Chief Financial Officer of the County, and all other officers and employees of the County, are fully authorized and empowered to take all further action and to execute and deliver all closing documents and certificates as may be necessary and proper in order to complete the issuance of the Bonds and the action of such officers or any one or more of them in executing and delivering any documents, in the form as he or they shall approve, is hereby fully authorized.

Section 2 Vice Chairman May Act in Chairman's Absence; Acting Clerk May Act in Clerk's Absence.

In the absence of the Chairman, the vice chairman of the County Council is fully authorized to exercise all powers vested in the Chairman under this Ordinance. In the absence of the Clerk, the acting clerk of the County Council is fully authorized to exercise all powers and take all actions vested in the Clerk under this Ordinance.

Section 3 Official Statement.

(a) The County Council hereby approve the form of the Preliminary Official Statement relating to the Bonds in substantially the form presented at third reading hereof and hereby direct the distribution thereof in connexion with the sale of the Bonds.

(b) The County Council hereby authorize the Official Statement of the County relating to the Bonds substantially in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement presented at this meeting, with any modifications as the Chief Financial Officer of the County, upon the advice of the Financial Advisor and bond counsel, approves; the Chief Financial Officer of the County is hereby authorized and directed to execute copies of the Official Statement and deliver them to the Original Purchaser of the Bonds, which execution and delivery shall be conclusive evidence of the approval of any such modifications; and the County hereby authorize the use of the Official Statement and the information contained therein in connexion with the public offering and sale of the Bonds.

Section 4 Benefits of Ordinance Limited to the County and Registered Owners of the Bonds.

With the exception of rights or benefits herein expressly conferred, nothing expressed or mentioned in or to be implied from this Ordinance or the Bonds is intended or should be construed to confer upon or give to any person other than the County and the registered owners of the Bonds, any legal or equitable right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of or in respect to this Ordinance or any covenant, condition, stipulation, promise, agreement, or provision herein contained. This Ordinance and all of the covenants, conditions, stipulations, promises, agreements, and provisions hereof are intended to be and shall be for and inure to the sole and exclusive benefit of the County and the registered owners from time to time of the Bonds as herein and therein provided.

Section 5 Ordinance Binding Upon Successors or Assigns of the County.

All the terms, provisions, conditions, covenants, warranties, and agreements contained in this Ordinance shall be binding upon the successors and assigns of the County and shall inure to the benefit of the registered owners of the Bonds.

Section 6 No Personal Liability.

No recourse shall be had for the enforcement of any obligation, covenant, promise, or agreement of the County contained in this Ordinance or the Bonds, against any member of the County Council, or any officer or employee of the County, as such, in his or her individual capacity, past, present, or future, either directly or through the County, whether by virtue of any constitutional provision, statute, or rule of law, or by the enforcement of any assessment or penalty or otherwise; it being expressly agreed and understood that this Ordinance and the Bonds are solely corporate obligations, and that no personal liability whatsoever shall attach to, or be incurred by, any member, officer, or employee as such, past, present, or future, either directly or by reason of any of the obligations, covenants, promises, or agreements, entered into between the County and the registered owners of the Bonds or to be implied therefrom as being supplemental hereto or thereto; and that all personal liability of that character against every such member, officer, and employee is, by the

enactment of this Ordinance and the execution of the Bonds, and as a condition of, and as a part of the consideration for, the enactment of this Ordinance and the execution of the Bonds, expressly waived and released. The immunity of the members, officers, and employees, of the County under the provisions contained in this Section shall survive the termination of this Ordinance.

Section 7 Effect of Saturdays, Sundays and Legal Holidays.

Whenever this Ordinance requires any action to be taken on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday or bank holiday in the State of South Carolina or in a state where the office of any Fiscal Agent is located, the action shall be taken on the first secular or business day occurring thereafter. Whenever in this Ordinance the time within which any action is required to be taken or within which any right will lapse or expire shall terminate on a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday or bank holiday in the State of South Carolina or in a state where the office of any Fiscal Agent is located, the time shall continue to run until midnight on the next succeeding secular or business day.

Section 8 Partial Invalidity.

(a) If any one or more of the covenants or agreements or portions thereof provided in this Ordinance on the part of the County or any Fiscal Agent to be performed should be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law, then such covenant or covenants, or such agreement or agreements, or such portions thereof, shall be deemed severable from the remaining covenants and agreements or portions thereof provided in this Ordinance and the invalidity thereof shall in no way affect the validity of the other provisions of this Ordinance or of the Bonds, but the registered owners of the Bonds shall retain all the rights and benefits accorded to them hereunder and under any applicable provisions of law.

(b) If any provisions of this Ordinance shall be held or deemed to be or shall, in fact, be inoperative or unenforceable or invalid as applied in any particular case in any jurisdiction or jurisdictions or in all jurisdictions, or in all cases because it conflicts with any constitution or statute or rule of public policy, or for any other reason, such circumstances shall not have the effect of rendering the provision in question inoperative or unenforceable or invalid in any other case or circumstance, or of rendering any other provision or provisions herein contained inoperative or unenforceable or invalid to any extent whatever.

Section 9 Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.

(a) Pursuant to Section 11-1-85 of the Code of Laws of South Carolina 1976, as amended ("Section 11-1-85"), the County Council covenant to file with a central repository for availability in the secondary bond market when requested:

(i) An annual independent audit, within thirty days of the County Council's receipt of the audit; and

(ii) Event specific information within 30 days of an event adversely affecting more than five percent of the aggregate of revenues of the County.

The only remedy for failure by the County Council to comply with the covenant in this Section 9 shall be an action for specific performance of this covenant. The County Council specifically reserves the right to amend this covenant to reflect any change in Section 11-1-85, without the consent of any registered owner of any Bonds.

(b) In addition, the County Council hereby authorizes the County Administrator to execute the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, in substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibit <u>D</u>, with any changes therein as may be approved by the County Administrator, upon the advice of the Financial Advisor or bond counsel. The County Council further hereby covenant and agree that they will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the County Council to comply with the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking shall not be considered an event of default with respect to the Bonds; however, any registered owner may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandamus or specific performance by court order, to cause the County Council to comply with their obligations under this paragraph.

Section 10 Law and Place of Enforcement of the Ordinance.

This Ordinance shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of South Carolina and all suits and actions arising out of this Ordinance shall be instituted in a court of competent jurisdiction in said State.

Section 11 Repeal of Inconsistent Ordinances and Resolutions.

All ordinances and resolutions of the County Council, and any part of any resolution or ordinance, inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of the inconsistency.

Section 12 Notice of Enactment of Ordinance

Upon enactment of this Ordinance, notice, substantially in the form attached hereto as <u>Exhibit</u> \underline{C} , of the enactment of this Ordinance shall be published in <u>The Post and Courier</u>, a newspaper published in Charleston, South Carolina of general circulation in the County.

Section 13 Effective Date of this Ordinance.

This Ordinance shall become effective upon approval following third reading.

ATTEST:

Ruth Mayer, Clerk to Council

SIGNED:

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED:

Approved as to Form Sean P. Thornton, County Attorney Sponsor(s) First Reading Committee Referral Committee Consideration Date Committee Recommendation Second Reading Public Hearing Third Reading Effective Date County Council
July 28, 2015
N/A
N/A
N/A
September 1, 2015
October 6, 2015
October 6, 2015
Immediately

I, _____, Council Clerk, certify that this Ordinance was advertised for Public Hearing on _____

ORDINANCE NO. 15-0-11

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[To Ratify FY15 Grant And Budget Resolutions And Related Appropriations For All Funds; To Ratify Transfer And Other Resolutions Previously Authorized By Council; And Other Matters Related Thereto.]

WHEREAS:

- 1. Colleton County Budget Ordinance requires supplemental appropriations for unanticipated revenues received after the adoption of the budget; and
- 2. The County regularly adopts a final budget amendment ordinance to account for budget resolutions and interfund transfers authorized by Council during the fiscal year, as well as grants and any other supplemental appropriation actions in accordance with the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, and the County's budget ordinance.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

- 1. The Colleton County Council hereby:
 - a. Ratifies all previously approved FY15 Budget Resolutions and authorizes and directs the County Administrator to amend the FY15 budgetary appropriations as so resolved;
 - b. Ratifies all previously approved FY15 Resolutions related to amendments to the County Record of Roads (ROR), if any.
 - c. Ratifies all Resolutions, voice motions, and other actions approved by County Council for Fiscal Year ending 6/30/15 including those awarding contracts, directing specific fiscal actions such as authorizing, increasing or reducing fund transfers, operational transfers, reclassifications, fund balance designations, and fund balance appropriations.
 - d. Approves the budgeting of funds, if any, received by the CCRFC from Covenant Billing during the Fiscal year ending 6/30/15, within Fund 156 to meet the needs of the County.
 - e. Approves any increase in Budget Revenues related to Medical Services for FY15 based on actual collections and the appropriation of said funds within Fund 156 to meet the needs of the County.
 - f. Approves the write-off of all Colleton County Fire and Rescue Medical Services billings which cannot be collected due to the statute of limitations during the fiscal year ending 6/30/15 audit as identified by CCRFC and approved by the Colleton County Administrator.

- g. Approves the write-off of all Colleton County Solid Waste Billings which cannot be collected due to the statute of limitations during the fiscal year ending 6/30/15 audit as identified and approved by the Colleton County Administrator.
- h. Approves end-of-year adjustments as necessary to the Operational Transfers of various funds in order to decrease particular fund appropriation and correspondingly increase other fund appropriation in accordance with the operational needs and expenditures of the various Funds in FY15 and to balance the required revenue to expenditures in said Funds.
- i. Approves recording the July 17, 2014 Public Service Authority Loan of \$1,200,000 in Fund 142, and all corresponding debt service payments related thereto.
- j. Approves recording the May 15, 2015 South State Bank lease purchase agreement of \$1,759,724 in Fund 100, and all corresponding debt service payments related thereto.
- k. Approves recording the May 14, 2015 General Obligation 1% Sales Tax Bonds Series 2015 of \$29,700,000 in fund 143, and all corresponding debt service payments related thereto.
- 2. Conflict: All provisions in other County Ordinances or Resolutions in conflict with this Ordinance are hereby repealed.
- 3. Severability: If any provision of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any person or circumstances is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of the Ordinance which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application and to this end, the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.
- 4. This ordinance includes the ratification of all Resolutions, voice motions and other actions as previously approved by Colleton County Council for the fiscal year ending 06/30/2014.

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Clerk to Council

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED:

Approved as to Form Sean P. Thornton, County Attorney Sponsor(s) First Reading Committee Referral Committee Consideration Date Committee Recommendation Second Reading Public Hearing Third Reading Effective Date County Council
September 1, 2015
N/A
N/A
N/A
October 6, 2015
November 3, 2015
November 3, 2015
Immediately

I, _____, Council Clerk, certify that this Ordinance was advertised for Public Hearing on _____

ORDINANCE NO. 15-0-12

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[ORDINANCE APPROVING THE ISSUANCE BY PROJECT GLOBAL OF REVENUE BONDS FOR THE PURPOSES OF AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT PROJECT OF COLLETON COUNTY; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF THE DEPOSIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT BETWEEN COLLETON COUNTY AND PROJECT GLOBAL; TO PROVIDE FOR THE ISSUANCE AND SALE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS OF COLLETON COUNTY IF NEEDED, SOUTH CAROLINA TO FUND OBLIGATIONS OF COLLETON COUNTY UNDER THE DEPOSIT AND REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT TO PROMOTE THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT OF COLLETON COUNTY; AND OTHER MATTERS RELATING THERETO.]

Sponsor(s)	: County Council
Adopted	: September 1, 2015
Committee Referral	: N/A
Committee Consideration Date	: N/A
Committee Recommendation	: N/A
Adopted Committee Referral Committee Consideration Date	: September 1, 2015 : N/A : N/A

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[A Resolution to Approve a Mutual Aid Agreement between the Colleton County Sheriff's Office and the Lexington County Sheriff's Office.]

WHEREAS:

- 1. A Supreme Court ruling found that for a Sheriff's Office Mutual Aid Agreement to be valid, it has to be approved by the County Council; and
- 2. The Sheriff's Office has the Mutual Aid Agreements currently held between the Office and neighboring jurisdictions; and
- 3. There is one agreement that requires Council approval (copy is attached); and
- 4. Staff recommends that Council approve the Mutual Aid Agreement with the Lexington County Sheriff's Office.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

- 1. The Mutual Aid Agreement with Lexington County Sheriff's Office (attached and included herein by reference) is hereby approved.
- 2. The County Administrator is hereby authorized to sign said agreement on behalf of Colleton County.

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Council Clerk

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED:

Sponsor(s)	: County Council
Adopted	: September 1, 2015
Committee Referral	: N/A
Committee Consideration Date	: N/A
Committee Recommendation	: N/A

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[A Resolution to Approve the Maintenance Agreement for the Lease of Equipment between Colleton County and Agricredit Acceptance, LLC.]

WHEREAS:

- 1. Colleton County staff has deemed it necessary to enter into a Maintenance Agreement for the Lease of Golf Carts for the Dogwood Hills Golf Course; and
- 2. Club Car, LLC is the State Contract holder for this service; and
- **3.** It is deemed in the best interest of the County to enter into this Maintenance Agreement.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

- 1. County Council hereby approves the Maintenance Agreement for the Lease of Equipment between Colleton County and Agricredit Acceptance, LLC.
- 2. The County Administrator is hereby authorized to execute said Agreement pending approval by the County Attorney.

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Council Clerk

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED: Sponsor(s): County CouncilAdopted: September 1, 2015Committee Referral: N/ACommittee Consideration Date: N/ACommittee Recommendation: N/A

RESOLUTION NO. 15-R-86

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[A Resolution to Authorize an Appropriation from the General Fund (Fund 100) Fund Balance in the Amount of \$17,800 to Council on Aging Direct Assistance.]

WHEREAS:

- 1. Colleton County's internal auditing requirements state that all agencies that receive direct assistance from the County submit an audit for the previous year by March of the current fiscal year; and
- **2.** Direct assistance to the Council on Aging, in the amount of \$17,800, for the Fiscal Year ending June 30, 2015 was withheld in accordance with the above stated policy; and
- **3.** On June 30, 2015 the Council on Aging submitted their Fiscal Year 2014 audit to Colleton County in order to meet the County's requirements for Direct Assistance; and
- **4.** Staff recommends that Council approve a fund balance appropriation from the General Fund (Fund 100) to the Council on Aging Direct Assistance in the amount of \$17,800, which was withheld during the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

A fund balance appropriation in the amount of \$17,800 from the General Fund (Fund 100) to Council on Aging Direct Assistance is hereby approved.

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Council Clerk

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED:

Sponsor(s)	: County Council
Adopted	: November 5, 2013
Committee Referral	: N/A
Committee Consideration Date	: N/A
Committee Recommendation	: N/A

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[A Resolution to Authorize an Operating Transfer from the State Aid to the Library Fund (Fund 121) to the Colleton County Memorial Library Fund (Fund 122).]

WHEREAS:

- 1. The Colleton County Memorial Library Received \$75,000 in State Aid funding for the current fiscal year; and
- 2. State Aid funding can be used for personnel costs for the employment of a professional librarian with a Masters in Library and Information Science degree; and
- **3.** During the budget process for the current fiscal year, funding for staff at the Edisto Library branch was cut; and
- **4.** The Library Board has requested that Council authorize an operating transfer from the State Aid to the Library Fund (Fund 121) to personnel line items in the Colleton County Memorial Library Fund (Fund 122) in the amount of \$7,600 to fund the Library Director's position; and
- 5. The \$7,600 budgeted in personnel line items for FY 16 for the Director's position will be used to fill the Edisto Branch Manager position; and
- 6. County Council deems it to be in the County's best interest to approve this operating transfer.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

1. County Council hereby authorizes an operating transfer from the State Aid to the Library Fund (Fund 121) to personnel line items in the Colleton County Memorial Library Fund (Fund 122) in the amount of \$7,600.

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Council Clerk

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED:

Sponsor(s)	: County Council		
Adopted	: September 1, 2015		
Committee Referral	erral : N/A		
Committee Consideration Date	: N/A		
Committee Recommendation	: N/A		

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[A Resolution To Authorize Acceptance and Budgeting of Funds for Various Grants Received for FY 2015-2016.]

WHEREAS:

- 1. The County Budget Ordinance requires a Resolution to record all non-budgeted revenues and non-budgeted grant revenues; and
- 2. The County Engineer, within the Roads and Bridges Department, is considered the Office of Primary Responsibility (OPR) related to the receipt of non-budgeted income for FY16 for grants received from the U.S. Department of Commerce/U.S. Economic Development Administration (EDA), SC Rural Infrastructure Authority and SC Department of Commerce/Coordinating Council for Economic Development.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

- 1. County Council hereby authorizes the designation of appropriate general ledger accounts to record revenue and expenditures in the following funds for the grants and unbudgeted revenues for FY13 as listed:
 - a. Fund 120 Special Revenue Fund; SC Department of Commerce/Coordinating Council for Economic Development; Rural Infrastructure Fund Grant #C-15-2504; \$1,000,000 for infrastructure for Economic Development Projects.
 - **b.** Fund 143 Capital Projects Sales Tax Fund; U.S. Department of Commerce; Economic Development Administration Grant; \$780,000 for infrastructure at the Lowcountry Regional Airport; match provide by Capital Projects Sales Tax.
 - **c.** Fund 143 Capital Projects Sales Tax Fund; SC Rural Infrastructure Authority; Water and Wastewater Improvements at Lowcountry Regional Airport Park Grant #R-15-3006.
- 2. The above listed OPRs (Offices of Primary Responsibility) are responsible for preparing any external reports related to said funds, complying with grant terms and conditions, coordinating reimbursement requests with the Finance Department in addition to being the responsible parties for providing copies of external reports to the Finance Office, grant auditors, and to external auditors at the end of FY16 as requested for this grant/non-budgeted revenue received.

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Council Clerk

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED:

Sponsor(s)	: County Council
Adopted:	: September 1, 2015
Committee Referral	: N/A
Committee Consideration Date	: N/A
Committee Recommendation	: N/A

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

(To Appoint Members to Board Vacancies.)

WHEREAS:

- 1. Board of Disabilities & Special Needs has one vacancy for un-expired terms; and Applicants: Gregory Smalls
- Board of Adjustments & Appeals (Building Dept.) has two vacancies(one heat/air, one plumbing); and Applicants: None
- 3. Colleton County Commission of Alcohol & Drug Abuse has one vacancy; and Applicants: None
- 4. The County Council is the appointing authority for Boards.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

The Council Hereby appoints the following:

Colleton County Board of Disabilities: Gregory Smalls

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Council Clerk

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

Sponsor(s)	: County Council
Adopted	: September 1, 2015
Committee Referral	: N/A
Committee Consideration Date	: N/A
Committee Recommendation	: N/A

COUNCIL-ADMINISTRATOR FORM OF GOVERNMENT FOR COLLETON COUNTY

[To Establish Fees for the Dogwood Hills Golf Course.]

WHEREAS:

A fee schedule for the Dogwood Hills Golf Course must be established.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COLLETON COUNTY COUNCIL DULY ASSEMBLED THAT:

The following fee schedule for the Dogwood Hills Golf Course is hereby established:

18 Holes with Cart	\$	18.00
9 Holes with Cart	\$	12.00
18 Holes Walking	\$	12.00
9 Holes Walking	\$	8.00
Twilight (After 3 pm/9 Holes with Cart)	\$	10.00
Replay (9 Holes)	\$	8.00
Weekends - Friday, Saturday, Sunday and Holida	iys	
18 Holes with Cart	\$	23.00
9 Holes with Cart	\$	17.00
18 Holes Walking	\$	14.00
9 Holes Walking	\$	10.00
Replay (9 Holes)	\$	13.00
No walkers until 1 pm on weekends and holidays.		
Annual Playing Packages/Membership		
Single Membership unlimited Golf with Cart	\$	1,580.00
Family Membership unlimited Golf with Cart*	\$	2,000.00
20 Rounds (18 Holes) with Cart	\$	300.00
	\$	200.00

A Single or Family Membership to the Colleton County Recreation Facility can be added to each playing package for a discounted rate. A single rate of \$100.00 per year or \$150.00 for a family allows customers the option of unlimited number of visits to the work out facilities at the Recreation Center.

ATTEST:

SIGNED:

Ruth Mayer, Council Clerk

Steven D. Murdaugh, Chairman

COUNCIL VOTE: OPPOSED: